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Dear Sir/Madam:

The purpose of this Request for Information (RFI) is to survey the service provider community on behalf of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) to gather information on Machine Learning (ML) and Robotic Process Automation (RPA) services.  These services must be able to span multiple teams or departments within the Commonwealth and even externally into third party providers, contractors, or customers to provide a fully optimized end-to-end flow.

The Commonwealth is seeking information on opportunities for implementing ML and RPA software that would integrate with various existing software such as citizens facing websites, applications and internal IT non-integrated systems. 

The Commonwealth is interested in available offerings, perceived pros and cons, best practices, and implementation experience that result in consistent innovation and improvement for its information technology services to:

· Deploy RPA where it is the most effective choice for automation,
· Achieve cost savings/Return on Investment (ROI),
· Provide enhanced customer experience,
· Increase efficiencies in processing,
· Reduce energy consumption, and
· Reduce IT asset utilization.

The following functions have been identified as potentially in scope:
· Provider Management,
· Human Resource Management,
· Capacity/Demand/Fiscal and Reporting Management,
· IT and Infrastructure Support,
· Back Office Administration,
· Process Mapping Management,
· Customer Relationship Management, 
· Customer Communication Management,
· [bookmark: _GoBack]Project Management, and 
· Case Management.


Additionally, the Commonwealth is seeking information on new RPA services relating to:
· A cloud-based RPA solution;
· A library of pre-built automations;
· Analytics and process-based business intelligence;
· Intelligent Chatbot and RPA load balancing; and
· Machine Learning and Algorithm Model scalability options. 
· 

RFI Questions Overview and Instructions
The following questions are being presented to the Service Provider community to solicit feedback on RPA services.  For the questions below, include available options, perceived pros and cons and industry best practices.

	RFI Questions for Service Providers

	Q #
	Question

	1
	Company Overview
· Provide a brief description of the service provider, services, business size, and point(s) of contact, including name, address, phone, and e-mail address.  Limit response to one page.

	2
	 Robotic Process Automation Model Structure
· Provide an overview of the available ML & RPA service option(s).  Please include information such as:
· What hosting options are available such as On-Premise or Cloud? 
· What setup or migration service is available?
· What ongoing support services are available?
· What user support services are available?
· What support levels and response times do you offer?
· What reporting and monitoring is available?
· Can a non-technical person automate a process without the help of an IT person using RPA? 
· What skill sets are required to utilize and configure RPA?
· Who is a typical user of the RPA tool?
· Does your product provide capabilities such as Natural Language Processing (NLP), Sentiment Analysis, Speech recognition, and image recognition, etc.? 
· What machine learning frameworks such as TensorFlow, Apache Spark MLib, and Amazon ML are supported?

	3
	Content Management
· What features are provided to support efficient execution of automations?
· Does the RPA solution integrate with a Business Process Management (BPM) or Case Management solution?
· Does the RPA solution use Artificial Intelligence (AI) capabilities like machine learning, deep learning and cognitive?
· Describe how voice or chatbot is integrated with the platform.
· What kind of analytics does the RPA platform provide?
· Describe how load balancing is managed.
· Describe the deployment model and explain why it’s utilized.
· Describe monitoring performance and audits.
· Describe the training requirements.
· Describe the Customer Support program.
· Describe hosting and tenancy options.
· Describe how Centralized Management is achieved to monitor and control usage.

	4
	Access Control

· Describe how the option(s) ensures data privacy.
· Describe how the option(s) manages access and credentials to target applications. 
· Detail the option(s) ability to integrate with other systems through Representational State Transfer (REST) or Simple Object Access Protocol (SOAP) web services.


	5
	Contract: Contract Model

What is the preferred contracting model, e.g., a prime contractor, who may provide services through subcontractors, as well as its own resources or another model?  Please provide feedback on the preferred approach.

Detail the licensing model.


	6
	Contract: Terms and Conditions
Provide examples of standard terms and conditions have been executed for these types of services.


	7
	Contract: Term Length
· What would be the optimal base period of performance and option years to ensure the optimal pricing of services?
· Typically, the Commonwealth would use three (3) years as a base period of performance.  


	
8
	General
· Based on a review of the breadth and scope of requested services, what additional information would be needed to better scope and price the requested services?
· What are the primary reasons large outsourcing projects, similar to the scope described in this RFI, fail or fall short of intended goals?
· What concerns, issues or roadblocks can be anticipated when delivering the scope of services described?
· Provide suggestions for mitigating such risks.





	9
	Clearances/Data Confidentiality Requirements
· Describe the standard approaches to address security and confidentiality concerns such as:
· Commonwealth established policies and security procedures require compliance with laws, including the Pennsylvania Criminal History Record Information Act (CHRIA) 18 Pa. C.S.A. § 9101, et seq.  
· Positions dealing with criminal justice matters will require compliance with:
· FBI Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS) Security Policy;
· Title 28 Code of Federal Regulations Part 20; and
· Commonwealth Law Enforcement Assistance Network (CLEAN).
· Positions dealing with confidential data such as PCI, PII and HIPAA are held accountable to the appropriate mandated regulations.
· Audit processes and management controls such as GAAP and IRS Publication 1075.


	10
	Cost Methodology

Please do NOT include pricing in response.

· Provide a cost methodology that your company utilizes for these types of services.  The Commonwealth is seeking information on costing model only.
· What are the cost saving measures or industry best practices that the Commonwealth should consider that may ensure receipt of optimal pricing?

	11
	Service Level Agreements (SLAs)
· What SLAs typically apply to these services?
· Provide sample SLAs that your company offers for these types of services.
· What metrics are suggested?  At what frequency?

	12
	Security
· What security testing is available?  How often are the tests conducted?
· What system monitoring/audit logging is available?
· What data segmentation and boundary protection is used?
· What exploit and malware protection is used if the cloud services are accessed from the Internet?
· What encryption controls are available to protect data in transit and data at rest?  
· What identity and access management controls are in place for authenticating users, provisioning and deprovisioning users (internal and external)?
· What data protection/recovery controls are in place for data, application, operating system, database, and infrastructure?
· What is your security incident handling and customer notification process?



Service providers may attach additional materials that provide information on described services.


All responses to this RFI are subject to the “Basic RFI Submission Principles and Understandings” set forth in Attachment A.

The Commonwealth, in its sole discretion, may request additional information from respondents.  The Commonwealth may also, in its sole discretion, request to meet with certain respondents to discuss the services identified in their responses to the RFI.

Please submit responses via email to RA-OITPurchases@pa.gov no later than 1:00 PM Eastern Time, March 30, 2018.  Please use the following subject line for your response “RFI 2018, Information Technology Robotic Process Automation (RPA).”





Attachment A
Basic RFI Submission Principles and Understandings

1. Purpose of RFI.  This inquiry is issued for information and planning purposes only and does not constitute a solicitation for future business, an offer for procurement or any other type of current or future procurement or contractual action and is only intended to gather input.  The Commonwealth will not award a contract on the basis of this RFI nor will it pay for information it receives.

2. Costs and Expenses.  The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is not liable for any costs or expenses incurred by a service provider in the preparation of its responses.

3. Trade Secret/Confidential Proprietary Information Notice.  The Commonwealth is not requesting, and does not require, confidential proprietary information or trade secrets to be included as part of service providers’ responses.  However, if a service provider decides to submit trade secret/confidential proprietary information as part of its response to this RFI, the service provider must complete the Trade Secret/Confidential Proprietary Information Notice Form, and submit a redacted copy of the response that excludes the confidential information.

All service provider submissions are subject to a request for public records made under the Pennsylvania Right-to-Know-Law, 65 P.S. §§ 67.101—67.3104, and may be subject to disclosure thereunder.  If a service provider does not submit a Trade Secret/Confidential Proprietary Information Notice Form and redacted submission, the unredacted submission will be disclosed.  If a service provider submits a Trade Secret/Confidential Proprietary Information Notice Form and redacted submission, the redacted submission will be disclosed.  The service provider will be responsible for defending the justification for the redactions in the event of an appeal under the Right-to-Know Law.

4. Commonwealth Use.  All material submitted shall be considered the property of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and may be returned only at the Commonwealth’s option.  Notwithstanding any service provider copyright designations contained on submissions, the Commonwealth shall have the right to make copies and distribute submissions internally and to comply with public record or other disclosure requirements under the provisions of any Commonwealth or United States statute or regulation, or rule or order of any court of competent jurisdiction.

5. Compliance with Law.  It is a service provider’s responsibility to discern its current or prospective obligations, and ensure its own compliance, with respect to applicable law (including but not limited to 71 P.S. § 776.1, et seq. known as the “State Adverse Interest Act”) when submitting a response to this RFI.
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